








































































DIRECTORS’ REPORT



HONOURABLE SHAREHOLDERS,

As-salmu Alaikum

It is my immense pleasure to welcome you all to the 
22nd Annual General Meeting of Asia Pacific General 
Insurance Company Ltd. I am glad to present our valued 
shareholders and other stakeholders with the Company's 
Annual Report for the year 2021. The report primarily 
comprehends the Auditors' Report, Directors' Report, 
Management Analysis of the Business, and the 
Company's Audited Financial Statements. This report's 
overall assessment is based on the company's financial 
performance. Furthermore, in order to promote openness 
and good governance standards, I on behalf of the Board 
of Directors would want to clarify and disclose some 
matters that they believe are relevant and significant. We 
believe that the report will provide a clear picture of the 
company's performance and further expansion in the 
face of fierce competition in the insurance industry.

Global Economy Outlook
One year into the COVID-19 pandemic, the accumulating 
human toll continues to raise concerns, even as growing 
vaccine coverage lifts sentiment. High uncertainty 
surrounds the global economic outlook, primarily related 
to the path of the pandemic. The contraction of activity in 
2021 was unprecedented in living memory in its speed 
and synchronized nature. But it could have been a lot 
worse. Although difficult to pin down precisely, IMF staff 
estimates suggest that the contraction could have been 
three times as large if not for extraordinary policy support. 
Much remains to be done to beat back the pandemic and 
avoid divergence in income per capita across economies 
and persistent increases in inequality within countries.

The global economy is recuperating invincibly from the 
COVID-19 outbreak, but the recovery process is very 
different and uneven among countries. In the World Bank 
published report titled „Global Economic Prospect, June 
2021 , the economic growth is projected at 5.6 percent 
in 2021which was contracted to 3.5 percent in 2020. 
Substantial fiscal support for the economy, policy 
support and vaccine access are the major determinants 
of this unstable growth. Global growth is set to reach 4.3 
percent and 3.1 percent respectively in 2022, and 2023 
in that report.

The report also foresees that the growth of developed 

economies will reach 5.4 percent in 2021, with 6.8 
percent potential economic growth in the United States. 
More contagious strains of coronavirus which have 
recently spread to countries with emerging markets and 
developing economies, along with vaccine availability 
are expected to hamper the country’s recovery process. 
Growth in emerging markets and developing economies 
is projected at 6.0 percent in 2021, with China growing 
at 8.5 percent and India at 8.3 percent. 

In the World Economic Outlook (WEO) April 2021, 
International Monetary Fund (IMF) projected that the global 
economy to grow at 6.0 percent in 2021 which is 0.8 
percent higher than the estimate of October 2020 WEO. For 
advanced economies, expected growth rate is 5.1 percent 
and for emerging markets and developing economies 
growth is projected at 6.7 percent in 2021. Initially the 
report made conservative prediction. After analyzing the 
recent resilient trend of global economic growth, the 
revised forecast has been made with higher projection.

Bangladesh Economy
It has been among the fastest growing economies in the 
world over the past decade, supported by a demographic 
dividend, strong ready-made garment (RMG) exports, 
and stable macroeconomic conditions. Continued 
recovery in exports and consumption will help growth 
rates pick up to 6.4 percent in fiscal year 2021-22.

Bangladesh has an impressive track record of growth 
and poverty reduction. It has been among the fastest 
growing economies in the world over the past decade, 
supported by a demographic dividend, strong 
ready-made garment (RMG) exports, and stable 
macroeconomic conditions. Continued recovery in 
exports and consumption will help growth rates pick up 
to 6.4 percent in fiscal year 2021-22.

Bangladesh tells the world a remarkable story of poverty 
reduction and development. From being one of the 
poorest nations at birth in 1971 with per capita GDP 
tenth lowest in the world, Bangladesh reached 
lower-middle-income status in 2015. It is on track to 
graduate from the UN’s Least Developed Countries 
(LDC) list in 2026. Poverty declined from 43.5 percent in 
1991 to 14.3 percent in 2016, based on the international 
poverty line of $1.90 a day (using 2011 Purchasing 
Power Parity exchange rate). Moreover, human 
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development outcomes improved along many 
dimensions.

Bangladesh, like other countries, faces the daunting 
challenge of fully recovering from the COVID-19 
pandemic which has constrained economic activities and 
reversed some of the gains achieved in the last decade. 
The COVID-19 pandemic decelerated economic growth in 
2020 & 2021. The pace of poverty reduction slowed 
down, exports declined, inequality increased across 
several dimensions and the poverty rate increased to 18.1 
percent from 14.4 percent. Nevertheless, strong 
remittance inflows and a rebound in export market have 
helped the economy to start recovering gradually.

To recover fully and achieve its growth ambitions of 
achieving upper-middle income status, Bangladesh 
needs to address the challenge of containing COVID-19. 
Vaccinating the population will reduce the incidence of 
the disease and mortality and enable the full resumption 
of economic activities. Bangladesh also needs to 
address the challenge of creating jobs/employment 
opportunities through a competitive business 
environment, increased human capital and skilled labor 
force, efficient infrastructure, and a policy environment 
that attracts private investments.

Other development priorities include diversifying exports 
beyond the RMG sector; deepening the financial sector; 
making urbanization more sustainable and strengthening 
public institutions. Addressing infrastructure gaps would 
accelerate growth and reduce spatial disparities in 
opportunities across regions and within cities. 
Addressing vulnerability to climate change and natural 
disasters will help Bangladesh to continue to build 
resilience to future shocks.  Pivoting towards green 
growth would support the sustainability of development 
outcomes for the next generation.   

In the long-term, the Bangladesh GDP Growth Rate is 
projected to trend around 7.50 percent in 2022, 
according to our econometric models. Bangladesh is 
considered as a developing economy. Bangladesh's 
economic growth is expected to increase to 6.6% in the 
fiscal year ending June 2022, according to the 
International Monetary Fund, as the coronavirus 
pandemic abates and policies remain accommodative.

BANGLADESH INSURANCE INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
The Insurance industry bounced back unequivocally in 
2021 after getting hit by the coronavirus widespread 

much obliged to the compression of over the top 
commission to operators and digitization of 
administrations. Add up to net premium of life and 
non-life protections developed 8.45 per cent 
year-on-year to Tk 14,392 crore in 2021, agreeing to the 
Protections Improvement and Administrative Specialist 
(IDRA). However, premium fell 0.89 per cent to Tk 
13,271 crore in 2020 due to pandemic.

In 2021, the IDRA issued circular excepting protections 
companies from paying more than 15 per cent of the 
premium as commission to their agents. However, most 
safeguards neglected the order, inciting the controller to 
issue a take note in late 2019, guideline them to comply for 
the purpose of the sector's welfare. Subsequently, in a 
assembly with the Bangladesh Protections Affiliation in 
2019, protections companies collectively concurred to take 
after the arrange in a offered to keep the division alive. Many 
companies advertised as tall as 60 per cent of the premium 
as commission to secure commerce, which harmed 
benefits of the guarantees, concurring to industry insiders.

In 2019, life and non-life protections add up to net 
premium is Tk 13, 389 crore. On the other hand, it 
diminished in 2020 to come in at Tk 13, 271 crore. In 
expansion, it developed in 2021 and turned into Tk 14, 
392 crore. Concurring to the commerce standard and 
protections data established, in 2020 the protections 
industry contributes as it were 0.4 per cent to 
Bangladesh's developing net household item (GDP). 
There are 33 life protections and 46 non-life protections 
companies dynamic within the nation. Of them, 49 are 
recorded with the stock showcase.

As a entirety, 2020 was characterized by vulnerability 
and challenges. Be that as it may, each organization did 
not respond within the same way to outlive within the 
quickly changed circumstances. Whereas a few 
businesses experienced an unfavorable effect, others 
found modern roads of development. 

The widespread gave communities and businesses an 
impulse to improve and reexamine on how they work. 
Over the world and in Bangladesh, companies have 
found better approaches to provide for clients by 
overhauling their foundation and operations, and by 
advertising new services and ways to connect. 
Bangladesh is rising against all the deterrents like it did 
numerous times within the past. The economy is starting 
to appear signs of recuperation. The Government is 
taking dynamic steps in all divisions counting wellbeing, 
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framework and back to maintain our past development 
momentum. The widespread has brought more 
noteworthy center on people's wellbeing, the require for 
budgetary security and the instruments that empower 
this - counting protections

As we celebrate Bangladesh's 50th commemoration of 
freedom in 2021, it is beyond any doubt we are going 
see indeed more collaboration to realize the protections 
industry's potential. Finally, the insurance industry must 
seek to lead with purpose and live up to its highest 
aspirations, particularly in the wake of the COVID-19 
pandemic. Insurers had to be there for customers and 
undertook large-scale change quickly to make sure they 
could serve people in need – and they must continue to 
do so, particularly if they are to help the world prepare 
for increasing climate risk.

FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
During the year 2021, our gross premium income has 
increased to BDT 523.98 million in 2021 from BDT 
462.16 million in 2020 or increased by 13.37% resultant 
enhanced performance in acquiring new business 
portfolio despite of the outbreak of COVID -19, which 
bring about an increase also in Net premium income by 
4.15% to BDT 302.23 million from BDT 290.17 over the 
prior year, as the Company adjusted its reinsurance 
premium to assume more risk on the class wise business 
portfolio. While profit from operation i.e underwriting 
profit increased by 6.81% from BDT 120.57 million to 
BDT 128.79 million. Concerning revenue by class of 
business, our Marine portfolio is the largest contributor 
accounting for 40.06% of total GWP. Our Fire portfolio 
accounts for 39.85% of total GWP with Motor and 
Miscellaneous contributing the remaining 20.09%. Our 
Claim payment for the year 2021 was BDT 120.95 million 
compared to BDT 125.43 million in 2020. Total Assets 
now stand at over BDT. 1421.98 million over the year 
endorsing the Company’s financial strength and stability. 

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE:
The Company's primary concentration remains on the 
retail sector, where it excels in distribution and claims 
management. The company's underwriting operation 
covers Fire, Marine, Motor, and Miscellaneous 
insurances, in accordance with industry standards. 
Marine and Fire Insurance contribute the most to total 
GWP, contributing for 40.06 percent and 39.85 percent 
of total premium earned, respectively.

Fire Insurance Business:
In the non-life insurance sector, fire insurance is a 

high-risk business. Due to the higher sum insured and 
risk, the maximum amount of premium is ceded for 
reinsurance protection, making it impossible to achieve 
an underwriting profit from the fire insurance. Fire 
Insurance total written premiums have increased by 
10.14 percent from BDT 189.48 million in 2020 to BDT 
208.71 million in 2021. The net premium earned from 
the Fire Insurance business was BDT 95.77 million after 
reinsurance premiums were ceded. The Company's fire 
insurance operation resulted in an underwriting profit of 
BDT 3.70 million as opposed to underwriting loss of Tk. 
3.59 million in the previous year. Fire insurance is 
contributing the 39.85% of total premium.  

Marine & Hull Insurance Business:
Marine Insurance is contributing 40.06% of the total 
Premium and be the main contributor to revenues 
remaining the same in 2021 as in 2020. The gross 
written premium income has increased by 6.54% from 
Marine & Hull insurance from BDT 197.05 million in 
2020 to BDT 209.94 million in 2021. After ceding 
re-insurance premium, the net premium income from 
Marine insurance business stood at BDT 161.79 million. 
The Company earned an underwriting profit of BDT 
107.29 million in 2021.

Motor Insurance Business:
The gross written premium income in Motor Insurance 
Business decreased by 12.17% from BDT 41.92 million 
in 2020 to BDT 36.82 million in 2021 due to the fact that 
there is no obligation to have Motor Insurance in the Road 
Transportation Act - 2018. The net premium income 
stood at BDT 35.47 million. The Company earned an 
underwriting profit from motor insurance business for 
BDT 25.70 million. Motor business contributes 7.02% of 
the total underwriting portfolio of the Company.                                                                   

Miscellaneous Insurance Business:  
In the year 2021, the Company’s Miscellaneous Insurance 
Business increased by 103.29%. The gross written 
premium of Miscellaneous Insurance business for BDT 
68.49 million while it was BDT 33.69 million in 2020. The 
net premium income from Miscellaneous Insurance 
business stood at BDT 9.19 million after ceding reinsurance 
premium. Miscellaneous business characterizes 13.07% of 
the total underwriting portfolio of the Company.

UNDERWRITING RESULTS:
Traditionally, underwriting is the heart of Insurance 
business. The quality of underwriting has a direct impact 
on the Company's ability to grow. The Company's 
underwriting practice consists of a thorough review, 
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Business increased by 103.29%. The gross written 
premium of Miscellaneous Insurance business for BDT 
68.49 million while it was BDT 33.69 million in 2020. The 
net premium income from Miscellaneous Insurance 
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business. The quality of underwriting has a direct impact 
on the Company's ability to grow. The Company's 
underwriting practice consists of a thorough review, 

smart financial modeling, and precise risk pricing that 
protects the Company's interests while also producing 
value for the general public. Total underwriting profit 
increased by 6.81% from BDT 120.57 million to BDT 
128.79 million due to well-maintained management 
expenses and increase in class-wise business portfolio. 
We are taking all required steps throughout our 
organization to improve our capacity to deliver excellent 
underwriting profit growth all across our business units.

INVESTMENTS AND ITS INCOME:
Total investment of the Company comprising of Fixed 
Deposits (FD), Shares & Bonds stood at BDT 927.46 
million in 2021 against BDT 804.54 million in 2020. Out 
of the total investment, about 82% was concentrated in 
Fixed Deposit (F.D) with various Commercial Banks & 
NBFIs for BDT 757.89 million and remaining 18% 
includes investment in Shares & Bond for BDT 169.57 
million in 2021. Investment in shares had been shown at 
fair value after netting off with Fluctuation Reserve Fund 
against the reduction of share price compared to 
consideration value of the shares. 

At the year end of 2021, Investment income increased 
by BDT 12.03 million from BDT. 44.59 million in 2020 to 
BDT. 56.62 million in 2021. This was happened because 
the increase of income derived from the investment in 
the Capital Market. 

TOTAL ASSETS: 
The Net Assets of the Company stood at BDT 934.87 
million in 2021, while it was BDT 879.02 in 2020. Net 
Asset Value per Share (NAV) is BDT 21.96 in 2021 as 
against BDT 20.63 in 2020. 

TOTAL LIABILITIES:
The Corrent liabilities of the Company stood at BDT 
487.11 million in 2021 from Tk. 407.83 million in 2020. 
The Shareholders’ Equity is BDT 930.15 in 2021, while 
it was 873.80 in 2020.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND:
Considering the profit of the Company, The Board of 
Directors has been pleased to recommend for declaration 
of 18% (Eighteen) Cash dividend to the Shareholders for 
an amount of BDT 76,230,000/- only subject to approval 
of the 22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM).

CREDIT RATING
Asia Pacific General Insurance Company Ltd. has been 
awarded as “AA+” (pronounced as Double A plus) for 
long term which indicates very strong financial capability 

to pay claims & long term obligation and “ST-1” for 
short term which means strong capacity to meet up 
short term obligation. The Credit rating of the Company 
has been done by the Alpha Credit Rating Limited. The 
Company in its evaluation of credit rating report was also 
placed with “stable outlook”.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Insurance companies have come to rely on information and 
communication technology (ICT) to ensure seamless 
operations and effective service delivery. The ultimate goal 
is to employ available technology to innovate business 
processes and to assist end-users in meeting the 
Company's rising business needs. The Company has taken 
steps to improve current technology in order to significantly 
enhance and secure the IT infrastructure in the year 2021. 
In addition, integrated business operation software has 
been installed at the Head Office and Branches in order to 
provide rapid customer support and run day-to-day 
operations efficiently and seamlessly. The management 
could now keep track of all of the branches' operations in 
real time. Furthermore, we intend to make greater use of 
information and communication technologies, so that our 
valued customers may get the information and papers they 
need without having to come into the office, and so that 
they can communicate through the technology. 

RISK MITIGATION
The Board of the APGICL, with the assistance of the 
Management, has set out the overall approach of the 
Company’s risk management activities. The major areas 
of risk that the activities of the Company are exposed to 
are financial risks, strategy risks, insurance risks, 
operational risks and legal and compliance risks. These 
are continually being updated and adapted by the 
Company under guidance of the Board of Directors. The 
effectiveness of these systems is reviewed by internal 
auditor and statutory auditor and the Board of Directors. 

The management of the Company made risk 
assessment on business and made risk mitigation plan 
to eliminate risks. The audit committee supports the 
Board in monitoring activities of management and deals 
with risk management issues. See page: 75

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
All related party transactions were in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the 
year the Company did not enter into any transaction or 
arrangement with related parties, which were material or 
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. As per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 
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– 24, the details of Related Party Transactions entered 
into by the Company are included in the notes to 
Financial Statements, notes no. 37 (Page: 126).

COMPANY’S VEHICLE : Fuel and Maintenance
In Compliance with the Direction No.-05 of Circular No.: 
IDRA/GAD/1003/2011-554,   dated: 24.04.2014 by 
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), 
the Company’s total expenses relating to fuel and 
maintenance of its vehicle in 2021 was BDT 2.44 
million. The total number of Vehicle was 12 of which 
total cost was BDT 191.35 million and the written down 
value as at December 31, 2021 was BDT 71.57 million.

COMPLIANCE REPORT (under section 184 of the 
Companies Act, 1994)
i) The financial statements prepared by the Management 

of the Company present fair view of its state of 
affairs, the result of its operation, cash flows and 
changes in equity.

ii) Proper books of Account of the Company have been 
maintained.

iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the Financial 
Statements and that the accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

iv) International Accounting Standard (IAS) as applicable 
in Bangladesh has been followed in preparation of 
Financial Statements and any departure therefore 
also adequately disclosed.

v)  The system of internal control is sound in design and 
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

vi) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

vii) There are no significant deviations from last year in 
operating result of the Company.

viii) The operating and financial data of preceding five 
years have been provided.

ix)  During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Board 
of Directors held 04 meeting and the Director 
serving on the Board attended in aggregate 85% of 
the total number of meetings.

x)   During the year the company is rated by Alpha Credit 
Rating Ltd. (Alpha Rating) and graded as category 
of “AA+” for long term and “ST-1” for short term 
effective up to August 08, 2022.

xi) There are no extraordinary activities and their 
implications (Gain or Loss)

xii) There is no significant variance that occurs between 
Quarterly and Annual Financial Performance.

xiii) Minority shareholders have been protected from 
abusive action.

xiv)  At December 31, 2021 the pattern of shareholding  
are as under:

a) Shareholdings of Parent/Subsidiary/Associate 
Companies and other related parties – Nil

b)    Shareholdings of CEO, Company Secretary, CFO 
and Head of Internal Audit and their Spouse and 
minor children: - Nil   

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT
Status for compliance with the conditions imposed by 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s 
notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/admin/80 
dated June 3, 2018 has been presented in Page: 44

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 
The Board of the Company is comprised of 17 members 
as on 31 December 2021, including the CEO as ex officio 
member. The Board is well structured with a Chairman 
and a Vice Chairman, who are elected from the Board 
Members. The Chairman, the Vice Chairman and other 12 
Members are Non-Executive Directors and only the CEO 
is an Executive Director. There are also 2 Independent 
Directors in the Board. The Chairman and CEO of the 
Company are different bodies with separate functions and 
responsibilities. All the Directors encompass with a range 
of talents, skills and expertise to provide prudent guidance 
in respect to the operations of the Company. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNEBATION COMMITTEE (NRC)
The Board of Directors constituted a five member 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a 
sub-committee of the Board of the Company to comply 
with the BSEC notification dated 03 June 20l8. The 
Committee shall assist the Board in formulation of the 
nomination criteria or policy for determining 
qualification, positive attributes, experiences and 
independence of Directors and top level executives,

SHARE HOLDING POSITION
Summarized list of Shareholding position of Sponsors, 
Directors & General Public of the Company as on 
December, 31, 2021 is shown in Page: 63  

BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDENCE
During the year 2021, 04 (four) Board meetings were 
held. The attendance of Directors is shown in the page of 
60 in the this report. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Except the CEO, none of the Directors hold any office of 
profit of the Company. The Directors do not get any 
remuneration; they only get fees for attending Board/ 
Committee meetings. The maximum fees payable to 
Director is BDT 8,000/- for attending each meeting. 

RETIRED AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
In accordance with the provision of Section 113 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and relevant 
section of the Company’s Act 1994, the following Public 
Subscriber Shareholder  Directors shall retire in the 22nd 
Annual General Meeting and they being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election as per provision of the Article 
– 115 of the Company. 

01. Mr. Moshiur Rahman  
02. Ms. Nafisa Kamal
03. Mrs. Woahida Pervin Happy
04. Mrs. Lipika Biswas

EXTERNAL AUDITOR APPOINTMENT
The auditor M/s. Zoha Zaman Kabir Rashid & Co., 
Chartered Accountants is to retire as Auditor of the 
Company as per provision of law but being eligible as 
per section 210(3) of the Companies Act, offered 
themselves for re-appointment to act as Statutory 
Auditor of the Company for the year 2022. Considering 
the performance of M/s. Zoha Zaman Kabir Rashid & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, the Board recommended to 
re-appoint them as Statutory Auditor of the company for 
the year 2022 with remuneration as to approve in the 
22nd Annual General Meeting.   

FUTURE OUTLOOK
We will continue to focus on our strategic goals to 
ensure that the Company meets the needs of our 
Customers and generate sustainable and stable returns 
for our shareholders in the long run. We will continue to 

focus on appropriate risk selection, best management 
practice and to balance our entrepreneurial approach to 
business opportunities whilst protecting profitability.    

We are progressing in our digital platform and 
transformation efforts in order to provide new and 
effective services to our stakeholders. This will also aid 
in the development of a better client experience, 
operational efficiencies, and cost control, all of which 
should result in increased underwriting profit. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
We express our sincere appreciation and gratitude to 
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission 
(BSEC), Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms 
(RJSC), Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE), Chittagong Stock 
Exchange (CSE) and Central Depository of Bangladesh 
Ltd. (CDBL) for their gracious co-operation and 
continued support. We would like to put on record our 
appreciation and gratefulness for the co-operation and 
services rendered by the Sadharan Bima Corporation. 
We also express our special thanks & heartfelt 
felicitation to our respected shareholders, valued clients, 
patrons, well-wishers and external auditors for their 
support, assistance and patronage to facilitate our path 
towards the glory achieved so far by the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Aftab ul Islam, FCA
Chairman

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL42



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL 43

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL
ENTITY’S PERSON

EXISTENCE
CONSTITUTION
LEGAL

EXECUTIVE

PARTIES DIRECTORS
STAKEHOLDERS

CORPORATION
EXTERNAL

ARISE LAWS AUDITORSSTRONG
BOARD
EXECUTIVES

SYSTEMS
SYSTEM

REGULATION GOALS CASE
INVESTORSST

AT
UT
E

JURISDICTION
RETURNS
MANY CONTROLLED

FIRMS

COMPANIES AL
SO

IN
CL
UD
E

JU
RI
SD
IC
TI
ON
S

JU
RI
SD
IC
TI
ON
S

CR
ED
IT
OR
S

CA
PI
TA
L

ST
OC
K

MONITORING
CONTEMPORARY

SHAREHOLDERS

FIN
AN
CI
AL

PR
OV
ID
E

CO
NE
LIC
TS

IM
PA
CT

AGENTBEHAVIOR
REPORTING LENDERS

INFLUENTIAL

M
AN
AG
EM
EN
T

ENTITY

PERSONNEL
EFFICIENCY

OBJECTIVES CORPORATION’S

ELEMENT

GOODS
EXAMPLE

COMPENSATION

CO
MP
EN
SA
TIO
N

EMPLOYESS RE
LA
TE
D

RECEIVE

PARTICULAR

OB
JE
CT
S

POLICIES
SUPPLIERS
CUSTOMERS
BUSINESS
CORPORATIONSCO

NC
ER
NE
D

ME
CH
AN
ISM
S

CONTROLPROCEDURES

IN
TE
RE
ST
S

REGULATIONS
PERFORMANCE

RELATIONSHIPS

GENERAL VA
RYREGULATIORY AR

IS
ES

POLICY

SHAREHOLDER
COUNTRIES

ST
AT
UT
OR
Y

SERVICES

SE
RV
IC
ES

IN
TE
RE
ST

COMPANY

COMPANY

COMPANY

INFORMATION

LARGE FIRM
VA
RI
OU
S



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL44

Place: Dhaka

Date: May 30, 2022

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL 45

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OF BSEC’S NOTIFICATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 Issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange 
Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 9)

 
Condition

No.
 

 
 

 
Title  

 
  

 

 
Remarks
(if any)

 
 Complied  Not complied 

the appropriate column) 

1. Board of Directors 

1(1) 
Board ‘s Size shall not be less than 5 and more than 
20 

   

1(2) Independent Directors 

1(2)(a) 
Independent Director(s) - at least one fifth (1/5) of the 
total number of directors 

  

However 
Complied with the 
requirement of 
Insurance Act, 
2010 section 76. 
Among the 16 
board member 02 
(two) f them 
independent 
director. 

 
1(2)(b)(i) 

Independent director does not hold any share or holds 
less than one percent (1%) shares of total paid up 
capital 

 
  

1(2)(b)(ii) 

Independent director is not a sponsor of the company 
or is not connected with the company’s any sponsor or 
director or nominated director or shareholder of the 
company or any of its associates, sister concerns, 
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds 
one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up 
shares of the company on the basis of family 
relationship and his or her family members also shall 
not hold above mentioned shares in the company 

 

  

1(2)(b)(iii) 
Independent director has not been an executive of the 
company in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial 
years 

 
  

1(2)(b)(iv) 
Independent director does not have any other 
relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the 
company or its subsidiary or associated companies 

 
  

1(2)(b)(v) 
Independent director is not member or TREC holder, 
director or officer of any stock exchange 

   

1(2)(b)(vi) 

Independent director is not a shareholder, director 
excepting independent director or officer of any 
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an 
intermediary of the capital market 

 

  

1(2)(b)(vii) 

Independent director is not a partner or an executive 
or was not a partner or an executive during the 
preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s 
statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal 
audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or 
professional certifying compliance of this Code 

 

  

1(2)(b)(viii) 
Independent director is not independent director in 
more than 5 (five) listed companies 

   

1(2)(b)(ix) 

Independent director has not been convicted by a 
court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in 
payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a 
Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI) 

 

  

1(2)(b)(x) 
Independent director has not been convicted for a 
criminal offence involving moral turpitude 
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1(2)(e) 
The tenure of office of an Independent Directors 
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years which may be 
extended for 1 (one) tenure only 

   

1(3) Qualification of Independent Director 

1(3)(a) 

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable 
individual with integrity who is able to ensure 
compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate 
laws and can make meaningful contribution to 
business 

 

  

1(3)(b)(i) 

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or 
director of an unlisted company having minimum 
paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed 
company or a member of any national or 
international chamber of commerce or business 
association 

 

 

 

1(3)(b)(ii) 

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level 
executive not lower than Chief Executive Officer or 
Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or 
Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or 
Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a 
candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted 
company having minimum paid up capital of Tk. 
100.00 million or of a listed company 

 

 

 

1(3)(b)(iii) 

Former official of government or statutory or 
autonomous or regulatory body in the position not 
below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has 
at least educational background of bachelor degree 
in economics or commerce or business or law 

 

 

 

1(3)(b)(iv) 
University Teacher who has educational background 
in Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or 
Law 

 
 

Not Applicable 

1(3)(b)(v) 

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at 
least in the High Court Division of Bangladesh 
Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost 
and Management Accountant or Chartered Financial 
Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or 
Certified Public Accountant or Chartered 
Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or 
equivalent qualification 

 

 

Not Applicable 

1(3)(c) 
The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) 
years of experiences in any field mentioned in 
clause (b) 

 
 

 

1(3)(d) 
In special cases, the above qualifications or 
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior 
approval of the Commission 

  
Not Applicable 

1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief 
Executive Officer 

1(4)(a) 

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and 
the Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the company shall be filled by 
different individuals 

   

1(4)(b) 
The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the 
same position in another listed company 

   

1(4)(c) 
The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from 
among the non-executive directors of the company 
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1(4)(d) 
The Board shall clearly define respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing 
Director and/or Chief Executive Officer 

   

1(4)(e) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves 
from non-executive directors as Chairperson for that 
particular Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of 
the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the 
minutes. 

  
No such 
incident was 
occurred 

1(5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders 
1(5)(i) 

An industry outlook and possible future developments 
in the industry 

   

1(5)(ii) The Segment-wise or product-wise performance    

1(5)(iii) 
Risks and concerns including internal and external 
risk factors, threat to sustainability and negative 
impact on environment, if any 

 
  

1(5)(iv) 
A discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit 
Margin and Net Profit Margin, where applicable 

  
 

1(5)(v) 
A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary 
activities and their implications (gain or loss)   

 

1(5)(vi) 

A detailed discussion on related party transactions 
along with a statement showing amount, nature of 
related party, nature of transactions and basis of 
transactions of all related party transactions; 

 
  

1(5)(vii) 
A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through 
public issues, rights issues and/or any other 
instruments 

  

Not Applicable 

1(5)(viii) 

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate 
after the company goes for Initial Public Offering 
(IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share 
Offer, Direct Listing, etc. 

  

1(5)(ix) 
An explanation on any significant variance that 
occurs between Quarterly Financial performances 
and Annual Financial Statements 

  
 

1(5)(x) 
A statement of remuneration paid to the directors 
including independent directors 

   

1(5)(xi) 

A statement that the financial statements prepared 
by the management of the issuer company present 
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity 

 
  

1(5)(xii) 
A statement that proper books of account of the 
issuer company have been maintained 

   

1(5)(xiii) 

A statement that appropriate accounting policies 
have been consistently applied in preparation of the 
financial statements and that the accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment 

 

  

1(5)(xiv) 

A statement that International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been 
followed in preparation of the financial statements 
and any departure there from has been adequately 
disclosed 

   

1(5)(xv) 
A statement that the system of internal control is 
sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored 
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1(5)(xvi) 

A statement that minority shareholders have been 
protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest 
of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or 
indirectly and have effective means of redress 

   

1(5)(xvii) 

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon 
the issuer company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, if the issuer company is not considered to 
be a going concern, the fact along with reasons 
there of shall be disclosed 

   

1(5)(xviii) 

An explanation that significant deviations from the 
last year’s operating results of the issuer company 
shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be 
explained 

   

1(5)(xix) 
A statement where key operating and financial data 
of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 
summarized 

   

1(5)(xx) 
An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company 
has not declared dividend (cash or stock) for the 
year 

  
Not Applicable  

1(5)(xxi) 
Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share 
or stock dividend has been or shall be declared as 
interim dividend 

  
Not Applicable 

1(5)(xxii) 
The total number of Board meetings held during the 
year and attendance by each director 

   

1(5)(xxiii) 
A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along 
with name-wise details where stated below) held by: 

1(5)(xxiii)(a) 
Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and 
other related parties (name-wise details) 

  Not Applicable 

1(5)(xxiii)(b) 

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor 
children (name-wise details) 

   

1(5)(xxiii)(c) Shareholding pattern of Executives    

1(5)(xxiii)(d) 
Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more 
voting interest in the company (name-wise details) 

  

No individual 
hold more than 
10% and detail 
shareholding 
are disclosed 
in the note 04 
of Financial 
Statements. 

1(5)(xxiv) 
In case of appointment or re-appointment of a Director, a disclosure on the following 
information to the Shareholders: 

1(5)(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director    

1(5)(xxiv)(b) 
Nature of his or her expertise in specific functional 
areas 

   

1(5)(xxiv)(c) 
Names of companies in which the person also 
holds the directorship and the membership of 
committees of the board 

   

1(5)(xxv) 
A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed 
analysis of the company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of 
changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on: 

1(5)(xxv)(a) 
Accounting policies and estimation for preparation 
of financial statements 

   

1(5)(xxv)(b) 

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if 
any, clearly describing the effect on financial 
performance or results and financial position as 
well as cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes 
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1(5)(xxv)(c) 

Comparative analysis (including effects of 
inflation) of financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows for current 
financial year with immediate preceding five years 
explaining reasons thereof 

   

1(5)(xxv)(d) 
Compare such financial performance or results 
and financial position as well as cash flows with 
the peer industry scenario 

  
Difficulty in 
information 
collection 

1(5)(xxv)(e) 
Briefly explain the financial and economic 
scenario of the country and the globe 

   

1(5)(xxv)(f) 
Risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements, explaining such risk and concerns 
mitigation plan of the company 

   

1(5)(xxv)(g) 

Future plan or projection or forecast for 
company’s operation, performance and financial 
position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual 
position shall be explained to the shareholders in 
the next AGM 

   

1(5)(xxvi) 
Declaration or certification by the CEO and the 
CFO to the Board as required under condition No. 
3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A 

   

1(5)(xxvii) 

The report as well as certificate regarding 
compliance of conditions of this Code as required 
under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per 
Annexure-B and Annexure-C 

   

1(6) 

The company shall conduct its Board meetings 
and record the minutes of the meetings as well as 
keep required books and records in line with the 
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial 
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so 
far as those standards are not inconsistent with 
any condition of this Code 

   

1(7) 
Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief 
Executive Officer 

1(7)(a) 

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, 
based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition 
No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, other 
board members and Chief Executive Officer of the 
company 

   

1(7)(b) 

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC 
shall be posted on the website of the company 
including, among others, prudent conduct and 
behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest; 
compliance with laws, rules and regulations; 
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with 
environment, employees, customers and 
suppliers; and independency. 

  

 

2. Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company: 

2(a) 

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board 
of the holding company shall be made applicable 
to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary 
company 

  
Not 
Applicable  
Entity don’t 
have any 
subsidiary 
company.  

2(b) 
At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board 
of the holding company shall be a director on the 
Board of the subsidiary company 

  

2(c) 
The minutes of the Board meeting of the 
subsidiary company shall be placed for review at 
the following Board meeting of the holding company 
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2(d) 

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of 
the holding company shall state that they have 
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company 
also 

  

 

2(e) 

The Audit Committee of the holding company 
shall also review the financial statements, in 
particular the investments made by the subsidiary 
company 

  

3. 
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS): 

 3(1) Appointment 

3(1)(a) 

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director 
(MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a 
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC) 

   

3(1)(b) 

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company 
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals 

   

3(1)(c) 
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed 
company shall not hold any executive position in 
any other company at the same time 

   

3(1)(d) 
The Board shall clearly define respective roles, 
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC 
and the CS 

   

3(1)(e) 

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be 
removed from their position without approval of 
the Board as well as immediate dissemination to 
the Commission and stock exchange(s) 

  

No Such 
incident was 
occurred 
during this 
period. 

3(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings 
 

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the 
company shall attend the meetings of the Board 

  
 
 

3(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) 

3(3)(a) 

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the 
Board that they have reviewed financial 
statements for the year and that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief: 

 

  

3(3)(a)(i) 
These statements do not contain any materially 
untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; and 

 
  

3(3)(a)(ii) 

These statements together present a true and 
fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards 
and applicable laws; 
 

 

  

3(3)(b) 

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that 
there are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no 
transactions entered into by the company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the code of conduct for the 
company’s Board or its members; 
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3(3)(c) 
The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO 
shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

   

4. Board of Directors’ Committee    

 
For ensuring good governance in the company, 
the Board shall have at least following 
subcommittees: 

 
  

4(i) Audit Committee; and    
4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee.    
5. Audit Committee 

5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors    

5(1)(a) 
Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the 
Board 

  
 

5(1)(b) 

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company and in ensuring a good monitoring 
system within the business; 

  

 

5(1)(c) 
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the 
Board; the duties of the Audit Committee shall be 
clearly set forth in writing. 

  
 

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee 

5(2)(a) 
The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 
(three) members 

   

5(2)(b) 

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit 
Committee who shall be nonexecutive directors 
of the company excepting Chairperson of the 
Board and shall include at least 1 (one) 
independent director; 

   

5(2)(c) 

All members of the audit committee should be 
“financially literate” and at least 1(one) member shall 
have accounting or related financial management 
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience; 

   

5(2)(d) 
Casual Vacancy of the Audit Committee fill up 
immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the 
date of vacancy 

  
No such 
incident was 
occurred  

5(2)(e) 
The company secretary shall act as the secretary of 
the Committee 

   

5(2)(f) 
The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall 
not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent 
director 

   

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

5(3)(a) 
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit 
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
who shall be an independent director; 

   

5(3)(b) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee, the remaining members may elect one of 
themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, 
in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a 
quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall 
be duly recorded in the minutes. 

  
No such 
incident was 
occurred 

5(3)(c) 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain 
present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

   

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee 

5(4)(a) 
The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four 
meetings in a financial year: 
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5(4)(b) 

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee 
shall be constituted in presence of either two 
members or two third of the members of the Audit 
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is a must. 

   

5.5 Role of Audit Committee 

5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process    
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles    

5(5)(c) 

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to 
ensure that it is adequately resourced, including 
approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan 
and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance 
Report; 

   

5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors    

5(5)(e) 
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors 
for review of the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval or adoption; 

   

5(5)(f) 
Review along with the management, the annual 
financial statements before submission to the board 
for approval 

   

5(5)(g) 
Review along with the management, the 
quarterly and half yearly financial statements 
before submission to the board for approval 

   

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function    

5(5)(i) 
Review the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; 

   

5(5)(j) 
Review statement of all related party 
transactions submitted by the management 

   

5(5)(k) 
Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal 
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors 

   

5(5)(l) 

Oversee the determination of audit fees based 
on scope and magnitude, level of expertise 
deployed and time required for effective audit 
and evaluate the performance of external 
auditors; 

   

5(5)(m) 

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through 
Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public 
Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been 
utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant 
offer document or prospectus approved by the 
Commission: 

  Not Applicable  

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee 
5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors 

5(6)(a)(i) 
The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to 
the Board 

   

5(6)(a)(ii) 
The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if 
any: 

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interest   
N/A 

 
No such 

incident was 
occurred to 

report. 

5(6)(a)(ii)(b) 
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or 
material defect identified in the internal audit and 
compliance process or in the financial statements; 

  

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) 
Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory 
compliances including securities related laws, rules 
and regulations; 
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5(6)(a)(ii)(d) 
Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems 
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board 
immediately; 

  
 

5(6)(b) 

Reporting to the Authorities 
 
If any report which has material impact on the 
financial condition and results of operation and 
which has discussed with the Board and the 
management that any rectification is necessary and 
if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification 
has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit 
Committee shall report such finding to the 
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the 
Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 
(six) months from the date of first reporting to the 
Board, whichever is earlier. 

  

5(7) 

Reporting to the Shareholders and General 
Investors 
Report on activities carried out by the Audit 
Committee, including any report made to the Board 
under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, 
shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the 
issuer company. 

 

 

6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors 

6(1)(a) 
The company shall have a Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a subcommittee 
of the Board; 

   

6(1)(b) 

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the 
nomination criteria or policy for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and 
independence of directors and top level executive as 
well as a policy for formal process of considering 
remuneration of directors, top level executive; 

  

 

6(1)(c) 
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be 
clearly set forth in writing covering the areas stated 
at the condition No. 6(5)(b). 

  
 

6(2) Constitution of the NRC 

6(2)(a) 
The Committee shall comprise of at least three 
members including an independent director;    

6(2)(b) 
All members of the Committee shall be non-
executive directors; 

   

6(2)(c) 
Members of the Committee shall be nominated and 
appointed by the Board; 

   

6(2)(d) 
The Board shall have authority to remove and 
appoint any member of the Committee; 

   

6(2)(e) 

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or 
removal of any member of the Committee or in any 
other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the 
vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of 
occurring such vacancy in the Committee; 

  
No Such 
Incident was 
occurred  

N/A

No such 
incident was 
occurred to 

report.
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6(2)(f) 

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or 
co-opt any external expert and/or member(s) of staff 
to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting 
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or 
suggestion from such external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for 
the Committee; 

  
No Such 
Incident was 
occurred 

6(2)(g) 
The company secretary shall act as the secretary of 
the Committee; 

   

6(2)(h) 
The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute 
without attendance of at least an independent 
director; 

  
No Such 
Incident was 
occurred 

6(2)(i) 

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly 
or indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or 
consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s 
fees or honorarium from the company. 

   

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC 

6(3)(a) 
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC 
to be Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an 
independent director; 

   

6(3)(b) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves as 
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason 
of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes; 

  
No Such 
Incident was 
occurred 

6(3)(c) 
The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual 
general meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders: 

   

6(4) Meeting of the NRC 
6(4)(a) 

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a 
financial year; 

   

6(4)(b) 
The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any 
emergency meeting upon request by any member of 
the NRC; 

  

No Such 
emergency 
meeting was 
requested 
during the 
year. 

6(4)(c) 

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be 
constituted in presence of either two members or 
two third of the members of the Committee, 
whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is must as required under 
condition No. 6(2)(h); 

  
No Such 
Incident was 
occurred 

6(4)(d) 
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall 
duly be recorded in the minutes and such minutes 
shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC. 

   

6(5) Role of the NRC 

6(5)(a) 
NRC shall be independent and responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders; 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

6(5)(b) 
NRC shall oversee, among others, the following 
matters and make report with recommendation to 
the Board: 

  

6(5)(b)(i) 

Formulating the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, 
relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level 
executive, considering the following: 
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Condition

No.
 

 
 

 
Title  

 
  

 

 
Remarks
(if any)

 
 Complied  Not complied 

the appropriate column) 

6(5)(b)(i)(a) 

The level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate suitable directors to run the company 
successfully; 

   

6(5)(b)(i)(b) 
The relationship of remuneration to performance is 
clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; 

   

6(5)(b)(i)(c) 

Remuneration to directors, top level executive 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 
reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the company 
and its goals; 

   

6(5)(b)(ii) 
Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into 
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, 
educational background and nationality; 

  
 

6(5)(b)(iii) 

Identifying persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in top level 
executive position in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend their appointment and 
removal to the Board; 

  

 

6(5)(b)(iv) 
Formulating the criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and the 
Board; 

  
 

6(5)(b)(v) 
Identifying the company’s needs for employees at 
different levels and determine their selection, 
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; 

  
 

6(5)(b)(vi) 
Developing, recommending and reviewing annually 
the company’s human resources and training 
policies; 

  
 

6(5)(c) 

The company shall disclose the nomination and 
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria and 
activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its 
annual report. 

   

7. External or Statutory Auditors 

7(1) 
The issuer company shall not engage its external or 
statutory auditors to perform the following services of 
the company, namely: 

   

7(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;    

7(1)(ii) 
Financial information systems design and 
implementation; 

   

7(1)(iii) 
Book-keeping or other services related to the 
accounting records or financial statements; 

   

7(1)(iv) Broker – dealer services    

7(1)(v) Actuarial services    

7(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services;    

7(1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines;    

7(1)(viii) 
Audit or certification services on compliance of 
corporate governance as required under condition 
No. 9(1); 

   

7(1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest.    

7(2) 

No partner or employees of the external audit firms 
shall possess any share of the company they audit 
at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of 
that company; his or her family members also shall 
not hold any shares in the said company 
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Condition

No.
 

 
 

 
Title  

 
  

 

 
Remarks
(if any)

 
 Complied  Not complied 

the appropriate column) 

7(3) 

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall 
remain present in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual 
General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) 
to answer the queries of the shareholders. 

 

  

8. Maintaining a website by the Company 

8(1) 
The company shall have an official website linked 
with the website of the stock exchange. 

   

8(2) 
The company shall keep the website functional from 
the date of listing. 

   

8(3) 

The company shall make available the detailed 
disclosures on its website as required under the 
listing regulations of the concerned stock 
exchange(s). 

 

  

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance 

9(1) 

The company shall obtain a certificate from a 
practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary 
(Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management 
Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its 
statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis 
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance Code of the Commission and shall such 
certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 

  

9(2) 

The professional who will provide the certificate on 
compliance of this Corporate Governance Code 
shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual 
general meeting. 

 
  

9(3) 

The directors of the company shall state, in 
accordance with the Annexure-Attached, in the 
directors’ report whether the company has complied 
with these conditions or not. 
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Dated, Dhaka
20.04.2022

2021

2021

2021

Report
Suspected

Suspected
Any



2021

Bidhu Bhusan Chakraborty
Chief Executive Officer

Wahidul Haque Siddiqui
Director

Kashfi Kamal
Vice Chairman

Aftab ul Islam, FCA
Chairman

Zoha Zaman Kabir Rashid & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Date: 21 April, 2022

2021

2021

2021
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Bidhu Bhusan Chakraborty
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)



Mr. M. Jalalul Hai Independent Director

Independent Director

4

4

3

3

Board Meeting 
 

Sl. No Name of the Directors Position 
Meeting 

held Present 

1 Mr. Aftab ul Islam, FCA Chairman 4 4 

2 Ms. Kashfi Kamal  Vice Chairman 4 4 

3 Mrs. Kashimiri Kamal Director 4 2 

4 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Director 4 4 

5 Mr. Gazi A.Z.M. Shamim Director 4 4 

6 Mr. Moynul Haque Sidddiqui Director 4 4 
7 Mr. Mohd. Shahjahan Miah Director 4 4 
8 Mr. Golam Kabir Chowdhury Director 4 4 
9  Mr. Abdul Haque Director 4 4 

10   

11     
12   

 

 
13     
14     
15   

 Investment Committee Meeting 
Sl. No Name of the Directors Position Meeting held Present 

1 Mr. Moynul Haque Sidddiqui Chairman 6 6 
2 Mr. Aftab ul Islam, FCA Member 6 6 
3 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Member 6 4 
4 Mr. Mohd. Shahjahan Miah Member 6 6 
5 Mr. Gazi A.Z.M. Shamim Member 6 6 
6 Ms. Kashfi Kamal Member 6 4 

 

N.B : Leave of absence was granted to member of the Board/ committee who are unable to attend the meetings 
due to unavoidable circumstances. 

Directors Attendance in MEETINGS
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Mr. Niaz Rahim

Mr. Moshiur Rahman Director 4 2

Ms. Nafisa Kamal Director 4 2

Mrs. Lipika Biswas Director 4 4

Mrs. Woahida Pervin (Happy) Director 4 4



Claims Committee Meeting 

Sl. No Name of the Directors Position Meeting held Present 
1 Mr. Abdul Haque Chairman 2 2 
2 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Member 2 1 
3 Mr. Mohd. Shahjahan Miah Member 2 2 
4 Mr. Gazi A.Z.M. Shamim Member 2 2 
5 Ms. Kashfi kamal Member 1 1 
 
 

    
Audit Committee Meeting 

Sl. No Name of the Directors Position Meeting held Present 
2 Mr. M. Jalalul Hai Chairman 4 4 
3 Mr. Aftab ul Islam, FCA Member 4 4 
4 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Member 4 3 
5 Mr. Golam Kabir Chowdhury Member 4 4 
6 Mr. Moshiur Rahman Member 4 2 

 
 

   Executive Committee 
Sl. No Name of the Directors Position Meeting held Present 

1 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Chairman 1 1 
2 Mr. Aftab ul Islam, FCA Member 1 1 
3 Mr. Moynul Haque Sidddiqui Member 1 1 
4 Mr. Niaz Rahim Member 1 1 
5 Mr. M. Jalalul Hai Member 1 1 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Sl. No Name of the Directors Position Meeting held Present 

1 Mr. Niaz Rahim Chairman 1 1 
2 Mr. Aftab ul Islam, FCA Member 1 1 
3 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Member 1 1 
4 Mr. Moynul Haque Sidddiqui Member 1 1 
5 Mr. M. Jalalul Hai Member 1 1 

 
 
N.B : Leave of absence was granted to member of the committee who are unable to attend the meetings due to 

unavoidable circumstances. 
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS INFORMATION



4,091 (1101) (21.20%)
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For the year-2021   For the year-2020

 16,791,400 39.66% 17,638,400 41.64%

 10,736,100 25.34% 10,748,430 25.38%
 14,822,500 35% 13,963,170 32.98%
 42,350,000 100% 42,350,000 100%

Sl. Name of the Persons Position in API 
Share 

Subscribed Percentage 

 Group – A : Sponsors & Directors    
1 Mr. Aftab ul Islam FCA Chairman 1,329,000 3.14 
2 Ms. Kashfi Kamal Vice-Chairman 2,220,000 5.24 
3 Mrs. Kashmiri Kamal Director 1,484,000 3.50 
4 Mr. Wahidul Haque Siddiqui Director 1,221,000 2.88 
5 Mr. Gazi A.Z.M Shamim Director 1,331,000 3.15 
6 Mr. Moynul Haque Siddiqui Director 1,101,000 2.61 
7 Mr. Mohd. Shahjahan Miah Director 1,100,000 2.60 
8 Mr. Abdul Haque Director 847,000 2.00 
9 Mr. Golam Kabir Chowdhury Director 1,000,000 2.36 
10 Mr. Shah Md. Tawsif Wahid Anabil Director 847,000 2.00 
11 Mr. Iqbal Kabir Chowdhury Sponsor 400,000 0.94 
 Group – B : Public Shareholder Director    

12 Mr. Moshiur Rahman Director 9,03,600 2.13 
13 Ms. Nafisa Kamal Director 1,306,800 3.09 
14 Mrs. Lipika Biswas Director 851,000 2.01 
15 Mrs. Wahida Parvin (Happy) Director 850,000 2.01 
16 Mr. Niaz Rahim Independent 

Directors 
- - 

17 Mr. M. Jalalul Hai - - 
 Total Share Sponsors & Directors  16,791,400 39.66 
 General Public & other Shareholders  25,558,600 60.34 
 Total Share :  42,350,000 100% 

Number of Shareholders 

Year No. of Shareholder Growth % of Growth 
2017 2,615 (436) (14.29%) 
2018 3,195 580 22.18% 
2019 2,887 (308) (9.64%) 
2020 5,192 2,350 662% 
2021   

1.

2.
3.
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Particulars  
Amount in Million BD Taka 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Authorized share capital  1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 
Paid-up Capital 423.50 423.50 423.50 423.50 423.50 
NAV (Book Value)  932.12 873.68 832.92 801.43 795.76 
NAV (Book Value) Per share   21.96 20.63 19.66 18.89 18.79 

Market Share Capitalization 2900.97 3172.02 1,058.75 1,122.27 1,067.22 
EPS against Each Share Tk. 10/-  2.33 1.97 1.74 1.55 2.62 

EQUITY STATISTICS 

RESERVE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  

Particulars  
Amount in Million BD Taka 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Reserve for exceptional losses 307.70 277.50 248.50 217.50 190.10 
Investment fluctuation fund 87.42 118.62 82.20 65.13 60.26 
General Reserve 13.50 13.50 13.50 13.50 13.50 
Retained Earning 82.74 56.60 44.72 44.24 69.52 
Total 493.47 466.22 388.92 340.37 333.38 

Particulars  2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Total number of share 
outstanding 42,350,000 42,350,000 42,350,000 42,350,000 42,350,000 

Market closing price as on 31 
Dec. (DSE) 68.50 74.90 25.00 26.50 25.20 

Market Shares Capitalization 
(BDT ) 2,900,975,000 3,172,015,000 1,058,750,000 1,122,275,000  1,067,220,000  

MARKET CAPITALIZATION OF SHARES  

MARKET SHARE PRICE OF THE COMPANY 
 

Months in 2021 
Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) 

High Low High Low 
January 70.70 62.40 74.00 57.50 
February 67.30 60.40 65.60 56.10 
March 64.20 50.90 64.00 58.60 
April 73.20 57.90 73.90 60.20 
May 75.50 66.00 76.30 64.90 
June 78.50 70.50 78.00 67.00 
July 72.70 71.30 72.60 67.00 
August 71.00 64.00 70.50 63.70 
September 73.00 68.70 73.00 68.00 
October 69.80 67.80 71.00 65.00 
November 68.90 61.70 68.90 60.30 
December 68.50 61.70 72.70 60.30 
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5-YEARS 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Gross Premium Income 523.98 462.16 564.33 526.43 466.76
Re-Insurance Ceded 221.74 171.98 216.83 192.00 187.50
Net Premium Income 302.23 290.17 347.50 334.43 279.26
Management Expense 114.87 95.46 109.31 84.31 64.30
Net Claims 65.1 62.36 122.49 111.05 114.78
Underwriting Profit/(Loss) 128.79 120.57 61.92 71.98 40.63
Interest Income 35.11 37.11 48.64 36.92 33.50
Profit on Sale of Share 14.92 1.98 18.54 5.42 61.01
Reserves Fund 13.5 13.5 13.50 13.50 13.50
Investment (FDR & Bond) 757.89 592.6 542.94 468.92 466.44
Investment in Share at fair value 91.57 148.94 185.01 201.53 200.10
Total Assets 1421.98 1286.85 1394.23 1371.40 1348.74
Paid-up Capital 423.5 423.5 423.50 423.50 423.50
Avg: Share Holder Equity 930.14 873.8 818.92 801.40 772.97
Dividend % 18% 10 10.00% 10.00% 15.00%
No. of Shares Allotted 42.35 42.35 42.35 42.35 42.35
Earning Per Share 2.33 1.97 1.74 1.57 2.15
Book Value Per Share 21.96 20.63 19.66 18.96 18.79

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Authorized Share Capital 1000 1000 1,000      1,000      1,000      
Paid -up Capital 423.5 423.5 423.50 423.50 423.50
Profit & Loss appropriation account 82.74 56.06 44.72 44.24 69.52
Share Premium 102.7 102.7 102.70 102.70 102.70
Reserve and Contingent Account 321.2 291 262.00 231.00 203.60
Current Liabilities 487.11 407.83 482.65 503.81 495.35
Current Assets 1117.32 935.8 1181.10 1144.36 1141.99
Fixed Deposit Receipts 757.89 592.6 542.94 468.92 466.44
Investment in Share at fair value 91.57 148.94 185.01 201.53 200.10
Bangladesh Govt. Treasury Bond 78 63 25.00 25.00 25.00
Account Receivable 164.71 194.63 173.29 207.63 185.78
Inventories 0.25 0.24 2.09 1.78 1.56
Total Assets 1421.98 1286.85 1324.21 1310.89 1290.77

Operational Performance 
Amount in Million (BDT)

Financial Position
Amount in Million (BDT)
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
A value added statement is a financial statement that shows how a business creates money and distributes that wealth 
to various stakeholders. Employees, shareholders, the government, creditors, and the wealth retained in the enterprise 
are among the numerous stakeholders. The main objectives of preparing Value Added Statements are:

•  To indicate the value or wealth created by an enterprise. In a way it shows the wealth creating ability of the             
organization.

•  To show the manner in which the wealth created is distributed amongst the employees, shareholders and the 
government. The pattern of distribution of value added can be clearly understood.

•  To indicate the organizations contribution to national income.

During the year under review, the Company made a positive contribution by paying salaries and allowances to 
employees, paying dividends to shareholders, and paying VAT, tax, stamp duty, and other fees to the government. The 
Management of the Company is very conscious of and transparent in conducting insurance business within the 
framework of rules, and they strive to maintain the company's stable growth. The following are the ways in which value 
is created and distributed among the company's stakeholders, including the government, investors, and employees:

Value Added 
BDT (million) Distribution of Value 

Addition 
BDT (million) 

2021 2020 2021 2020 
Gross Premium Income 523.98 462.16 Re-insurance premium 221.74 171.98 
Re-insurance commission 35.06 32.09 Agency Commission 23.80 69.32 
FDR Interest Income 35.11 37.11 Management Expenses 114.87 95.46 
Investment Income 20.20 5.81 Net Claims 65.10 62.36 
Other Income 1.29 1.66 Unexpired Risk Adjust 5.13 24.13 

Total : 615.64 538.83 Income tax to Govt. 71.61 28.57 
 Dividend Distribution 42.35 42.35 

Reserve & Surplus 83.41 44.66 
Total : 615.64 538.83 

ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
Economic value added (EVA) is a metric for a company's financial performance that is computed by subtracting its 
cost of capital from its operating profit on a cash basis, then adjusting for taxes. Economic Value Added (EVA) is the 
Company's economic profit over a certain time period. It calculates the Company's financial performance by 
subtracting its cost of capital from its operational profit, adjusted for taxes on a cash basis, to arrive at residual wealth. 
A positive EVA indicates that a company is earning more than the required minimum return. Economic Value Added is 
significant because it is used as a measure of how profitable a company's projects are, and it so reflects management 
performance. Economic Profit is another term for economic value added. It calculates the profit of the company's 
economic success or failure over a given period of time.
The EVE is defined as: (Net Operating Profit – Tax – Cost of Capital for the year).
The Company is deeply concerned for maintaining higher value to its Shareholders/ Equity providers. The EVA of the 
Company at the year-end on 31st December, 2021 is given below:

Particular 
(BDT in million) 

2021 2020 
Net Operating Profit before Tax 170.30 111.80 
Govt./ Corporate Tax Provision 71.61 28.57 

Net Operating Profit after Tax 98.69 83.23 
Cost of Capital  42.35 42.35 

Economic Value Added (EVA) 56.34 40.88 
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MARKET VALUE ADDED STATEMENT :
Market Value Added (MVA) is the difference between the total market value (based on the closing price in the 
secondary capital market) and total book value of the Company’s equity shares. The higher Market Value Added the 
better the Company’s position. A high market value indicates the Company has created substantial wealth for the 
shareholders. A negative MVA means that the value of Management’s action and investment are less than that of value 
of the capital contributed to the Company by the Capital Market. As at 31st December, 2021, the Market & Book Values 
of the total outstanding shares of the Company are given below :

Particulars Number of share Value per share 
(Taka) 

Total Value (BDT in million) 
2021 2020 

Book Value 42,350,000 22.01 932.12 873.68 
Market Value 42,350,000 68.50 2900.97 3172.02 

ACCOUNTING RATIO PERTAINING TO INSURANCE BUSINESS

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Profitability and performance ratios 
 

Gross profit margin ratio   58.80% 50.74% 53.12% 55.08% 
Operating income ratio (%)  26.09% 10.97% 12.72% 8.71% 
Net profit margin ratio (after tax) (%)  18.01% 13.08% 12.79% 19.21% 
Return on assets ratio (%)  10% 7.74% 7.30% 20.70% 
Return on equity ratio (%)  6.47% 9.07% 8.40% 11.60% 
Operating cash flow to net profit ratio (%)  110% 10.87% 108.63% 142.44% 
Expanses Ratio (%)  51.29% 40.37% 26.10% 24.53% 
Claim Ratio (%)  13.01% 21.71% 34.70% 41.10% 
Combined Ratio (%)  64.30% 62.08% 60.80% 65.63% 

67.88%
24.58%
18.84%
10.91%
10.94%

132%
43.96%
12.43%
56.39%

Liquidity Ratio 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Current Ratio (times)  2.32 1.84 1:2.25 1:2.30 
Quick ratio (times)  2.30 1.90 1:2.30 1:2.30 
Return on shareholders fund after tax (%)  20.21% 9.02% 13.87% 11.89% 
      
Earning Ratio : 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Price Earnings Ratio (times)  38.02 14.31% 16.67 11.89 
Dividend Payout Ratio=(Dividend/NP)*100  50.76% 57.47% 62.89% 70.75% 
Dividend Yield ratio  1.34% 4.02% 3.77% 5.95% 
      
Solvency Ratio : 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Required Solvency Margin  62.57 77.93 85.20 63.89 
Available Solvency Margin  287.75 241.93 371.39 415.56 
Solvency Margin ratio (Times)  4.60 3.10 4.36 6.52 

2.74
2.74

20.56

29.40
77.25
2.63

69.92
331.49

4.74



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL68

REVIEW ON ASSET QUALITY
The Company is always focuses to make investment of its fund on the superior assets quality to bring highest value, 
ensure satisfactory return to the stakeholders and sustainable development. The Investment Committee of the 
Company subject to ratification of the Board of Directors is continuously reviewing the quality of assets and provides 
necessary direction to make investment of the fund in an effective manner. Year wise investment and assets quality of 
the Company are given below:

SOLVENCY MARGIN STATUS
Solvency margin is the amount by which asset of an insurer exceeds its liabilities and will form part of the insurer’s 
funds. The insurance regulations specify the methods for valuing an insurer's assets and liabilities. The rules 
established a minimum solvency margin that an insurer had to maintain at all times. An insurance company's solvency 
is determined by its capacity to pay claims. The solvency or financial strength of an insurance company is primarily 
determined by whether sufficient technical reserves, such as an Exceptional Loss Reserve, an Unexpired Risk Reserve 
Fund, or a General Reserve Fund, have been established for the obligations assumed and whether the company has 
adequate capital as security.

Assets, Liability and Solvency Margin of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 are described below:

Sl 
No. 

Class of 
Business 

Gross 
Premium 

Net 
Premium Factor 

GP after 
application 

of factor 

20% 
of 

GPF 

20% 
of NP 

20% of 
(NP&GPF) 
which is 
higher 

1 Fire 208.71 95.77 0.50 104.35 20.87 19.15 20.87 
2 Marine 209.95 161.79 0.70 146.96 29.39 32.35 32.35 
3 Motor 36.83 35.48 0.85 31.30 6.26 7.09 7.09 
4 Miscellaneous 68.49 9.19 0.70 47.94 9.58 1.83 9.58 
 Total : 523.98 302.23     69.89 

Total Assets as per Balance sheet 1421.98 Sundry Creditor 49.59 
Solvency 
Margin 

Available 
(A-B) 

Less :  Amount due to others 93.82 
Amount due from others 164.71 Provision for Taxation 88.22 
Property, Plant & Equipment 135.08 Reserve for exceptional loss 307.70 
Sundry Debtors 61.80 Deposit Premium 62.11 
Stock of Stationary & Stamp 0.25 Reserve of Unexpired Risk 122.71 

331.49 
A. Total Assets : 1060.14 B. Total Liability : 728.65 

Position of total assets 
Amount (BDT in million) 

2021 2020 2019  2018 2017 
Investment in Shares & Bonds 169.57 211.94 210.01 291.66 285.35 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 863.42 666.82 658.77 613.74 574.09 
Fixed Assets 135.08 139.10 145.08 149.90 155.66 
Other Assets 253.91 268.99 228.14 255.58 282.55 
Total : 1421.98 1286.85 1242.00 1,310.88 1,297.65 

Particulars of Assets 
(BDT in million) Growth 

(%) 2021 2020 

Investable 
Assets 

Investment in Govt. Bond 78.00 63.00 23.80 
Investment in Listed Co. Shares 91.57 148.94 (35.51) 
Fixed Deposits with Bank & NBFI 757.89 592.60 27.89 
Cash and Bank Balances 105.53 74.22 42.18 

Other 
Assets 

Fixed Assets 135.08 139.09 (2.88) 
Other Assets 253.91 269.06 (5.63) 

Total : 1421.98 1286.85 10.50% 
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Report on the areas
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Business Review and Financial Overview of the Company:
APGICL is one of the non-life insurance Company offer a comprehensive and well diversified range of products including 
Fire, Marine, Motor and Miscellaneous insurance to various type of customers. The Company derives its revenue 
principally from 1) premiums earned for insurance coverage provided to insured, 2) investments income; 3) others 
income. In accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (BFRSs-8.20) and local regulatory authority 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) requires preparation of separate financial results of the Company. 

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of Financial Statements
The company follows International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
in preparation of financial statements. Necessary disclosures and rules have been complied while preparing financial 
statements in compliance with the Insurance Act, 2010 and Companies Act, 1994, the Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC), Rules 1987, Listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong 
Stock Exchange (CSE). Detailed description of accounting policies is disclosed in the Note – 2 of the Financial 
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Changes in accounting policies and estimation
The company is following consistent method in preparing it Financial Statements. However, any changes in 
accounting policies are incorporated in preparation of the annual accounts accordingly.   

Comparative analysis of Segment wise Operating Result/ Performance of the Company & current and 
immediately preceding five years:

In line with the general practices, the underwriting business of the Company covers Fire, Marine, Motor & Miscellaneous 
insurances business. Out of total premium earned, it is found that Marine & Fire Insurances are mainly contributing to 
total GWP recorded 42.63% and 40.99% respectively. Class wise revenue composition are given below :

MANAGEMENT BUSINESS REVIEW 
AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

                                             

Particulars Fire Marine Motor Misc 
Total Growth/(

Declined) 

Growth/ 
(Declined) 

% 2021 2020 

Gross Premium Income 208.71 209.95 36.83 68.49 523.98 462.16   
Re-insurance premium ceded 112.94 48.15 1.35 59.29 221.74 171.98   
Net Premium Income 95.77 161.79 35.47 9.19 302.23 290.17   
Commission (net)  (6.22) (2.87) 0.04 (2.88) (11.93) 35.62   
Management Expenses 45.75 46.02 8.07 15.01 114.87 95.46   
Net Claim Paid 49.32 7.98 3.54 4.24 65.10 62.36   
Adjusted fund for un-exp. Risk (3.01) (3.36) 1.96 (0.71) (5.13) 24.13   
Underwriting Profit/ (Loss) 3.70 107.29 25.70 (7.90) 128.79 120.57   

           (Amount in million BDT.) 

67.82
49.76
12.06

(23.69)
19.41
2.74
(19)
8.22

13.37%
28.93%
4.15%

(66.52)%
20.33%
4.39%

(78.74)%
6.81%

The Company has experienced a steady growth in its financial positions. Comparative Financial position of the 
Company are given below:

5 years Financial position are given below :

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Shareholders’ Fund/Equity 930.14 873.80 832.92 801.44 799.32 
Current Liabilities 487.11 407.83 400.44 503.81 495.35 
Current Assets 1117.32 935.80 886.91 869.32 856.65 
Fixed Assets less Depreciation 135.08 139.09 145.08 149.90 155.66 
Net Asset Value per Share 21.96 20.63 19.66 18.92 18.89 
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Financial and economic Scenario of the Country and the globe:
The global insurance premium market, in 2019, reached USD 6.3 trillion with an estimated contraction of -1.4% in 
2020 and forecasted recovery growth rate of over 3% between 2021 and 2022. Global non-life insurance premium 
growth is expected to see a 3.6% annual improvement over the next two years, with the core driving factor in the 
non-life insurance market stated to be rate hardening in commercial insurance (i.e. where the market is less 
competitive and underwriters adhere to stricter standards).  Global life premium insurance growth is expected to 
rebound to 3%; with increased risk awareness owing to COVID-19 and global economic recovery set to accelerate 
the demand for life insurance products.

After a downturn due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, Bangladesh's economy has been trying to get back on track 
and has succeeded in some cases. The official statistics show that the growth rate dropped to 3.5 percent in FY 
2019-20 from 7.9 percent in FY 2018-19 due to Covid-19. However, it was estimated to grow by 5.4 percent in FY 
2020-21, and is projected to grow by 7.2 percent in FY 2021-22, according to government statistics. An economy 
which has been growing fast, defying all challenges, requires financial resources, among other needs. An important 
source for such finance is domestic resource mobilization, where taxation is the key component. However, domestic 
resource mobilization efforts in Bangladesh have not been encouraging till now. The current tax-GDP ratio is well 
below the requirement for a dynamic economy that looks forward to achieving various milestones, including 
becoming an upper-middle-income country by 2031 and an advanced country by 2041. 

5 years operational performance are given below : 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Gross Premium Income 523.98 462.16 564.33 526.43 466.76
Re-Insurance Ceded 221.74 171.98 216.83 192.00 187.50
Net Premium Income 302.23 290.17 347.50 334.43 279.26
Management Expense 114.87 95.46 109.31 84.31 64.30
Net Claims 65.1 62.36 122.49 111.05 114.78
Underwriting Profit/(Loss) 128.79 120.57 61.92 71.98 40.63
Interest Income 35.11 37.11 48.64 36.92 33.50
Profit on Sale of Share 14.92 1.98 18.54 5.42 61.01
Reserves Fund 13.5 13.5 13.50 13.50 13.50
Investment (FDR & Bond) 757.89 592.6 542.94 468.92 466.44
Investment in Share at fair value 91.57 148.94 185.01 201.53 200.10
Total Assets 1421.98 1286.85 1394.23 1371.40 1348.74
Paid-up Capital 423.5 423.5 423.50 423.50 423.50
Avg: Share Holder Equity 930.14 873.8 818.92 801.40 772.97
Dividend % 18.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 15.00%
No. of Shares Allotted 42.35 42.35 42.35 42.35 42.35
Earning Per Share 2.33 1.97 1.74 1.57 2.15
Book Value Per Share 21.96 20.63 19.66 18.96 18.79

Particulars
Amount in Million (BDT)



Risk and concern issues related to financial risk and concern and mitigation plan: 

Risk management is an important aspect of the Company's operations. As a result, the company has formed and 

developed a set of policies and procedures that cover all of its activities, including underwriting risk, credit risk, 

market risk, liquidity risk, and everything else related to financial statements. The Company is constantly working to 

identify, assess, and manage the risks it is exposed to. The Company's risk management strategy is based on a 

qualitative assessment of risk and the reduction of its hazards.  

Future plan and projection for Company’s operation performance and financial position: 

By continuing to enhance customer experience, we will be persistent in our efforts to change the perception of 

insurance from being a push to a pull product. At the same time, we will not compromise on our balance sheet 

strength and keep the target solvency capitalization ratio secure. We are aware that we continue to have a lot of work 

ahead of us. In particular, we need to become more productive and we need to be quicker and more rigorous in 

tackling necessary changes, especially in the area of digital insurance. This will be one of the most urgent goals to 

pursue in 2021 and over the next few years.

Bidhu Bhusan Chakraborty

Chief Executive Officer
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Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and training policies.
Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational. 
background and nationality.     
Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in top level executive position.
Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the Board.
Identifying the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer or replacement 
and promotion criteria. 
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REPORT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk management is the process of identifying, assessing and controlling threats to an organizations capital and 
earnings. These threats or risks can stem from a wide variety of sources including financial uncertainty, underwriting 
liabilities, strategic management errors, accidents and natural disasters. 

Insurance firms make a living by taking chances. Insurance companies all across the world write policies that cover 
specific risks, and in many cases, they even underwrite exotic risks. As a result, insurance companies should be 
adept at controlling their own risks as a direct consequence. An insurer's sound management is based on how 
successfully various risks are managed throughout the organization.
  
Risks we are facing

Underwriting risk
Insurance underwriters evaluate the risk and exposures of the prospective clients. They decide how much coverage the 
client should receive, how much they should pay for it, or whether to even accept the risk and insure them. Underwriting 
involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be charged to insure that risk. 
Accordingly, APGICL maintains an underwriting strategy to achieve the company’s mission and vision successfully. 

Credit risk
Credit risk is the possibility that a borrower of counter party will fail to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed 
terms. Regulations strictly prohibit the credit business in insurance sector in Bangladesh. Our company strictly 
follows the rules & regulations and ensures zero percent of business credit that also reflects a very good positive 
benefit to the business portfolio.  

Market risk
This is the risk to an institution's financial condition resulting from adverse movements in the level or volatility of 
market prices of interest rate instruments, equities and currencies. Market risk is usually measured as the potential 
gain/loss in a position/portfolio that is associated with a price movement of a given probability over a specified time 
horizon. The Management of the Company has a strategic plan to face such risk with efficient hands. 

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from 
external events. The committee indicates that this definition includes legal risk but excludes systematic risk and 
reputational risk. Operational risk is managed within acceptable levels through an appropriate level of management 
focus and resources. 

Liquidity risk
The risk that arises from the difficulty of selling an asset. An investment may sometimes need to be sold quickly. 
Unfortunately, an insufficient secondary market may prevent the liquidation or limit the funds that can be generated 
from the asset. The Comp[any responses to manage the risk by following policy of maintaining high liquid and near 
liquid resources and regular monitoring of its resources by the Board and the Management,  
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RISK MITIGATION AND REPORTING: 
The Company's Risk Management (the Framework) goal is to make sure that diverse risks are identified, measured, 
and mitigated, and that policies, procedures, and standards are in place to deal with them for systemic response and 
adherence. The Framework's broad structure is as follows:

• Risk identification, assessment and mitigation process;
• Risk management and oversight structure; and
• Risk monitoring and reporting mechanism.

Critical risks, together with a detailed mitigation strategy, are given to Senior Management on a quarterly basis as part of the 
Enterprise Risk Management exercise. The Company monitors the risk mitigation plans on a regular basis to ensure that they are 
carried out in a timely and appropriate manner. Each of the Company's risk categories is also assessed against a set of 
predetermined tolerance thresholds. These levels, as well as the tolerance scores that follow, are categorized as high, medium, 
and low risk, respectively. The risks are also assessed on a quarterly basis using a probabilistic and severity-based approach.

The Board of Directors' role
The company's risk management policies and practices are ultimately the responsibility of the board of directors. A 
board of directors often delegates responsibility for creating and implementing risk management plans to 
management, as well as ensuring that these programs remain adequate, comprehensive, and prudent. Material 
hazards should be properly controlled, according to the board of directors.

Role of management
The company's management is in charge of establishing and implementing the company's management program, as 
well as managing and controlling the relevant risks and portfolio quality in accordance with it. The Company's top 
management is responsible for reviewing the risk management process on a regular basis to verify that the process 
activities are aligned with the anticipated outcomes. The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for reviewing 
the Company's risk management systems as well as self-assessments of risk management operations.

Role of Re Insurance
The Reinsurance Program of the Company establishes the retention limit for various product classes. Furthermore, 
the Company has a risk retention reinsurance philosophy in place, which establishes product-specific retention 
limitations on a per-risk basis as well as a per-event retention limit. The own insurance of an insurance firm is referred 
to as reinsurance. A reinsurer is a corporation that takes on some of the risks that an insurance company has. 
Reinsurance is largely used to lower an insurer's underwriting risk and so allow it to expand its company. Because 
reinsurers benefit from stronger risk diversification than primary insurers, the cost of transferring risk to a reinsurer is 
lower than the solvency capital cost the insurer would incur if it kept the risk in its portfolio.

Pre risk inspection
Asia Pacific Gen. Ins. Co. Ltd. conducts a risk pre-inspection, which is beneficial for reinsurance purposes as well. It is 
impossible to segregate risk and make retention and cession to reinsurers without pre-risk inspection. The surveyor's 
suggestion for risk improvement in their report is more focused on lowering the risk of hazards than on minimizing the 
level of loss after a disaster has occurred. By combining risk reduction and effort, organizations can optimize risk to 
attain levels of residual risk that are bearable. Risk is a natural state of affairs. Risk can be good or negative, and by 
optimizing risks, you can strike a balance between negative risk and the operation's and activity's benefits.

Underwriting policy
The Underwriting Policy establishes approval limitations for various underwriters based on products. The Asset 
Allocation Strategy is outlined in the Investment Policy to provide financial liquidity, security, and diversification. The 
Company's Operational Risk Policy establishes the tolerance boundaries for operational risks as well as the framework 
for monitoring, supervision, reporting, and management. With communication and training, the company improves risk 
awareness and control comprehension. At every level of the organization, primary risk management and internal control 
systems are created and executed. Management is responsible for recognizing, evaluating, and resolving important 
risks, as well as establishing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls, as the first line of protection.
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RISK REPORTING 

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of control over financial reporting for 
the calendar year 2021 and has reported to the Board accordingly. Management has reviewed the effectiveness of 
the company's risk management system, including the risk tolerance and enterprise risk governance framework, and 
the Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of control over financial reporting for 
the calendar year 2021 and has reported to the Board accordingly. The Company has addressed or is addressing the 
issues highlighted, which have been disclosed to the Board. Internal and external auditors also report on the findings, 
observations, and recommendations that come from their independent reviews and testing of internal controls over 
financial reporting and operations on a regular basis.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal control is a process for assuring of an organization's objectives in operational effectiveness and efficiency, 
reliable financial reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations and policies. A broad concept, internal control 
involves everything that controls risks to an organization.

It is a means by which an organization's resources are directed, monitored, and measured. It plays an important role in 
detecting and preventing fraud and protecting the organization's resources. At the organizational level, internal control 
objectives relate to the reliability of financial reporting, timely feedback on the achievement of operational or strategic 
goals, and compliance with laws and regulations. At the specific transaction level, internal controls refers to the actions 
taken to achieve a specific objective (e.g., how to ensure the organization's payments to third parties are for valid 
services rendered.) Internal control procedures reduce process variation, leading to more predictable outcomes

The Company has adopted the following frameworks in accordance with the requirements laid down under Corporate 
Governance Guidelines.

(i) Internal Audit Framework
The Company has established an internal audit framework with a risk based approach. The internal audit covers 
auditing of processes as well as transactions. The Company has designed its internal control framework to provide 
reasonable assurance to ensure compliance with internal policies and procedures, regulatory matters and to 
safeguard reliability of the financial reporting and its disclosures. An annual risk-based internal audit plan is drawn up 
on the basis of risk profiling of the businesses/departments/branches of the Company which is approved by the 
Management. The Board/Committee considers that the internal control framework is appropriate to the business. The 
Internal Audit Department’s key audit findings, recommendations and compliance status of the previous key audit 
findings are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee actively monitors the implementation of its 
recommendations. The Chairman of the Audit Committee briefs the Board on deliberations taken place at the Audit 
Committee Meeting in relation to the key audit findings. 

(ii) Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or 
operations were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper and efficient 
conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
Throughout the year, the internal audit team conducted department audits, branch audits and they provide audit 
reports with suggestions and recommendations as well as confirmed spot rectification to ensure compliance, 
accountability and better performance.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The principles of this policy has been sets out to determine the amount that can be distributed to Equity Shareholders 
as dividend. APGICL proposes to have a dividend distribution policy that balances the dual objectives of appropriately 
rewarding Shareholders through dividend and retaining capital in order to maintain a healthy Capital adequacy ratio to 
support its future Capital requirements.

Declaration
Dividend shall be declared or paid out of 
i) Current year’s profit

a) After providing for depreciation and Tax in accordance with applicable laws.
b) After transferring to the reserves such amount of Profit as may be prescribed ,or

ii) The Profits for any previous financial year(s)
a) Remaining undistributed profit.
b) If the current year’s profit is not adequate then the Company may declare dividend out of accumulated 
distributable from year or

iii) Out of i) & ii) both
iv) The Company should avoid the practice of payment of dividend from borrowings except for meeting timing 
difference between payments of dividend and generating positive cash flows provided there is sufficient profit 
generated. Wide variant in rate of dividend should be avoided.

Dividend Equalization Reserve
A dividend equalization reserve may be created by appropriating a portion of the distributable profit from time to time 
enable the Company to maintain consistency distribution of dividend from year to year. In case where there is 
inadequacy for current profit for payment of desired dividend amount then it may be transferred from this account to 
distributable profit to maintain consistency in dividend distribution.

Factors to be considered before declaration of Dividend
The amount paid as dividends in the past will not be necessarily indicative of the amounts, if any that may be payable 
in future. The form, frequency and amount of future dividends shall be at the discretion of the Board and subject to 
the approval of Shareholders and will depend on various factors including but not limited to:

1. Profit earned during the financial year.
2. Cash flows position.
3. Future Capital requirements.
4. Future expansion plans.
5. Applicable taxes on dividend in hands of receipt including dividend distribution tax, where applicable.
6. Retained earnings vs. expected return from the business.
7. Re investment opportunities.

Procedure
1. The Company has only one Class of equity Shareholders. Therefore the declared dividend will be distributed 

equally among all the Shareholders based on their shareholding on the Record Date.
2. Pursuant to the provision of the applicable laws and this policy, the Board may declare interim dividend as and 

when they consider it fit, and recommend final dividend to the Shareholders for their approval in the general 
meeting of the Company and any final dividend recommended by Board of Directors, will be subject to the 
Shareholders approval at the ensuring Annual General Meeting of the Company.

3. The Management shall ensure compliance of provisions of all applicable laws in relation to distribution of declared 
dividend by the Company.
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REPORT ON CLAIMS SETTLEMENT

Claims management is one of the crucial functions of an insurance company as it is the ultimate test of a responsible 
and efficient insurer. Especially, in case of a non-life insurance company, where multi-varied lines of insurance 
products are catered/offered in response to the insured’s requirement (whether traditional or non-traditional in 
nature), procedures of claims management greatly vary with respect to the nature, cause and magnitude of claims on 
case to case basis.

Settlement of Claims is the prime object of the Company. Prompt settlement of claims is avowed motto under which 
the company become a symbol of trust and security through efficient and dedicated services to its insured and 
stakeholders. Normally the Company settle legitimate claims within a shortest possible time subject to receive of 
required documents and assessment for the loss adjusters.
The claim handling process starts with the notification of loss to APGICL and the company appoints a licensed loss 
adjuster immediately upon receipt of the intimation. Staffs and officers of the Company always alert in 24-hrs to 
receive claim intimation over telephone, email, post or online. Meanwhile, we require preliminary survey report to 
provide a note of possible liability on the occurrence. In order to ensure speedy disposal of claims, the insured and/or 
their agent are always requested to submit all available supporting documents without delay. A list of minimum 
requirement of supporting documents/papers for claims arising under each class of business is maintained at the 
Head Office of the Company.

As soon as Claim Department of the Company receives all necessary papers along with survey report from the loss 
adjuster, the company quickly scrutinizes all documents against its check list of requirements, verifies the loss 
adjustment made by the surveyor and if in order, proceeds with the settlement of claim without any loss of time. 
Besides settlement of claims that are possible to dispose off during the accounting period, adequate provision for 
outstanding claims, if any, are also maintained against unsettled claims.

In recognition to the claims services, Asia Pacific General Insurance Co. Ltd. has been awarded a Credit Rating of 
AA+ in claims pay-ability by the Alpha Credit Rating Agency.

Claims Settlement over the Year 

Description 
Amount (BDT in million) 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
Claim outstanding beginning of the year  57.62 62.77 58.82 25.90 
Claim intimation during the year  62.36 122.49 111.05 114.78 
Total Claims  119.98 185.26 169.87 140.68 
Claim paid during the year  55.15 127.63 107.10 81.86 
Claim outstanding at the end of the year  64.83 57.63 62.77 58.82 
Claim paid as % of total claim  45.96% 68.89% 63.04% 58.47% 

2021
129.94

119.98
185.26

169.87
140.68

2020 2019 2018 2017

64.84
65.10

129.94
71.69
58.25
55.37
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REPORT ON RE-INSURANCE

Reinsurance in the life blood of the non-life insurance company whereas a number of risk are underwritten of different 
size, i.e. small, medium big and large. Hence reinsurance provides the main underwriting support to protect the 
financial stability to the insurance company at the time of claim occurred. Proper reinsurance arrangement with the 
reputed insurance companies is the most important job of the reinsurance department of the Company.

Reinsurance is, by its nature, a global business, which deploys capital across geographical boundaries and line of 
business. The intent of reinsurance is for an insurance company to reduce the risk associated with underwritten 
policies by spreading risk across the alternative institutions. Reinsurance also increase the capacity of underwriting 
for the traditional and any new line of insurance business. It projects insurance company, policy holders and its 
stakeholder through providing instant solvency capital to stabilize net claim ratio.

Since reinsurance is a financial and services arrangement between an insurer and a reinsurer. It contains a number 
of different steps to transfer the risk in global market as well as financing for ensuring underwriting capacity to the 
insurance companies. The government of Bangladesh implemented the system through promulgation of the 
Insurance Corporation (amendment) Act 1990 to allowed private sector insurance companies to place 50% 
reinsurance of the business to state owned corporation and to place remaining 50% of their business with any 
reinsurer of their choice at home or abroad. Sadharan Bima Corporation will underwrite 100% of public sector 
business and distribute 50% to private insurance companies in the country.

The Company has extensive Re-insurance Treaty agreement up to any amount with Sadharan Bima Corporation 
(SBC) through Surplus, CAT XL and facultative reinsurance program. Under these arrangements, the Company is in 
position to underwrite any amount of business with confidence to meet the various needs of its valued Clients.

During the year 2021, the Company’s reinsurance arrangement continued to be a combination of proportional and 
non-proportional program for both conventional and special lines of business. The Company endorses the philosophy 
of buying an adequate cover to protect value at risk at all times. The reinsurance arrangement has been structured 
keeping this philosophy in perspective. A well-defined retention limit for each product segment that defines – its 
maximum “per risk” and “per event” exposure has been formulated.  The treaty limit of reinsurance arrangement with 
SBC is BDT 1,500 million for Fire business, BDT 250 million for Marine business and Excess of Loss treaty for Motor 
business with net loss retention BDT 0.50 million in excess of BDT 1.00 million. The Company has also facultative 
reinsurance arrangement with Sadharan Bima Corporation and other international reinsurer agencies.
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2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

523.98
302.23

290.17
347.50

334.43

279.26

462.16 564.33

526.43

466.76

65.1
62.36

122.49

111.49 114.78

487.32

407.83
482.65

503.81

495.35

1117.32

935.8 1181.10

1144.36

1141.99

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2.33

1.97
1.74 1.57

2.15

1421.98

1286.85
1324.21 1310.89

1290.77



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
APGICL 81

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

91.57
148.94

267.22
266.66

260.35

43.96 51.29

40.37

22.04

24.53

2.63%

1.34%

4.02%

3.77%

5.95%

77.25%

50.76%
57.47%

62.89%
70.75%

12.43
13.01

21.71
22.04

41.10

21.96
20.63

19.66

18.92

18.89

29..4

38.02

14.31 16.67

11.89

Price Earning Ratio (times)
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2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

2021 
2020 

2019 
2018 

2017

10.91% 10.00%

7.74% 7.56%

8.24%

2.99

4.6

3.10
3.89

6.52

128.79
120.57

61.29

71.98

40.63

757.89

592.6

542.94

468.92
466.44

18.84% 18.01%

13.08% 12.47%

19.21%

10.94%

6.47%

9.07%

8.19%

11.60%
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Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of Asia Pacific General Insurance Company Limited, which comprise the 
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, related Revenue Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
company as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, 
the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Emphasis of Matters:

The company has reported a Share Investment Fluctuation Reserve Fund for the accumulated losses arising on the 
Investment in Shares and presented it as sundry creditors under current liability. This fluctuation reserve amounts 
to BDT 41,926,433 as at 31 December 2021 has been derived from the fund “Share Investment Fluctuation 
Reserve Fund” amounts to BDT 118,621,692 after adjusting the realised loss on disposal of shares and unrealised 
loss arising from the changes in fair value of the investment in shares amounting BDT 31,195,432 and BDT 45, 
499, 827 respectively. 

The company has maintained a Gratuity Fund for the employees in line with Bangladesh Labour Act 2006. It has 
yet to receive the approval of the fund from National Board of Revenue (NBR) under First Schedule Part-C of 
Income Tax Ordinance 1984.

The company is yet to institute Worker’s Profit Participation Fund (WPPF). Such non-establishment contravenes 
with section 232 & 234 of the Bangladesh Labour Act 2006.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: 
the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. 
These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.   

•

•

•
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Risk Our response to the risk 

Fair Value Reserve: 

 

The company has made a number of investments 
amounting to Tk.91,575,306 in the listed securities in 
stock exchange. Income generated from the 
investments (realized gain and dividend received) is 
credited to the Profit & Loss Account. Unrealized 
capital gain or loss is transferred to the fair value 
reserve as per the policy of the company and maintain 
adequate deferred tax on such reserve. 

 

This item has significant impact on net asset value of 
the company and equity balances might be prone to 
misreporting as large unreported fall in the value of any 
holding may wipe out the value of the portfolio and 
hamper the distribution capability of the company 

 

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 
control as to monitoring valuation and updating of prices 
of the positions held by the Company from trusted 
sources. Additionally, we performed the following. 

 Obtained year-end share holding positions from the 
company and through directional testing assessed the  

 completeness of the report; 
 Ascertained the valuation of the holding as per IFRS 

13; 
 Reviewed and challenged the assumptions used for 

the valuation models for any unquoted securities. 
 Recalculated unrealized gain or loss at the yearend; 
 Carried out cut-off testing to ensure unrealized gain or 

loss was recognized in correct period; 
 Obtained and cross checked the CDBL report and 

share portfolio to confirm unrealized gain or loss; 
 Finally, assessed the appropriateness and 

presentation of disclosures against relevant 
accounting standards,  

Note no. 17 to the financial statements  

Premium Income: 

 

General insurance premiums comprise the total 
premiums received for the whole period of cover 
provided by contracts entered into during the 
accounting period. 

 

Given the important nature, connections to other items 
to the financial statements and sensitivity of the item 
we believe this area pose high level of audit risk. 

 

With respect to Premium income in respect of various 
types of insurance we carried out the following 
procedures: 

 Carried out analytical procedures and recalculated 
premium income for the period. 

 On a sample basis reviewed policy to ensure 
appropriate policy stamp was affixed to the contract 
and the same has been reflected in the premium 
register. 

 Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income 
was being deposited in the designated bank account. 

 Tested on a sample basis to see that appropriate VAT 
was being collected and deposited to bank through 
Treasury Challan. 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation 
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards,  

Note no. 30.00 to the financial statements  

Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims 
whether due or intimated and claim payment: 

 

This account represents Tk. 58,253,659 the claim due 
or intimated and related balance of recoverable from 
reinsurer, from the insured and involves significant 
management judgment and risk of understatement. In 
extreme scenario this item may have going concern 
implications for the company. 

 

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
controls around the due and intimated claim recording 
process. 

We additionally carried out the following substantive test 
around this item: 

 Obtained the claim register and tested for 
completeness of claims recorded in the register on a 
sample basis. 

 Obtained of policy copy and cross check it with 
claim. 
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  Obtained survey reports cross checked those against 
respective ledger balances and in case of discrepancy 
carried out further investigation. 

 Obtained and discussed with management about their 
basis for estimation and challenged their assumptions 
where appropriate. 

 Reviewed the claim committee meeting minutes 
about decision about impending claims. 

 Tested claims payments with intimation letter, survey 
report, bank statement, claim payment register and 
general ledger. 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation 
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards, 
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance 
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and 
regulations and regulatory guidelines. 

Note no. 11.00 to the financial statements  

Sundry Creditors: 

 

This account represents Tk 49,597,119  the claim due 
or impart and related balance payable to third parties 
throughout the next fiscal year. Some creditors, such 
as banks and other lenders, have lent money to the 
company and some are vendors or suppliers and 
Accrued Liabilities. 
 
Moreover, other creditors include the company’s 
employees who are owed PF, governments who are 
owed taxes, and customers who made deposits or 
other prepayments

Note no. 12.00 to the Financial Statements

. 

 

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
controls around the due and payable recording process. 

 
 Obtained the creditors register and tested for 

completeness of credits recorded in the register on a 
sample basis. 

 Obtained bill payable recording process and cross 
check it with ledger. 

 Obtained provision create process policy and cross 
checked those against respective ledger balances. 

 Obtained and discussed with management about their 
basis for provision and challenged their provision 
creation where appropriate. 

 Reviewed the govt. payable payment calculation  
 Tested a sample of 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against relevent accounting standards.

ledger 

lease payable with intimation 
letter, report, bank statement, register and general 

Property Plant and Equipment  

 

The company has a material amount of property plant 
equipment with a number of additions made during the 
year. Due to the latest improved technology and 
obsolescence makes the items included in the property 
plant and equipment prone to impairment. 

 

The management has concluded that there is no 
impairment in respect of all the assets parked under 
property plant and equipment. This conclusion involves 
significant management judgement. 

 

Since the property plant and equipment are material to 
the Statement of Financial Position representing  

 

Our audit procedures comprised of the following: 

 

 Assessing the consistency of methodologies use 
for depreciating the assets. This includes the 
depreciation rates being used over the years. 

 Agreeing on a sample basis, the accuracy and 
relevance of the accounting PPE by management. 

 Assessing the viability of the assumptions used 
by the management to confirm their rationale. 

 

 We performed existence checks for selected 
samples through physical inspection of the 
assets to assess the managements determination 
on whether the equipment is obsolete and testing 
the assumptions used in estimating recoverable 
amount such as estimated useful life and 
replacement cost. 
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 We examined the management’s periodic review 
of the property plant and equipment for 
determination of the impairment and 
obsolescence. 

Revenue 

Revenue of BDT 128,795,668 is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income for the year ended 31st December 2021.  

 

The revenue account is material to the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and is 
therefore identified as a key audit matter because 
revenue is one of the key performance indicator of the 
company’s performance and there is an inherent risk in 
relation to the timing of recognition. This is because 
there are multiple revenue streams including the fire, 
marine, marine hull and motor revenue accounts. 

In light of the fact that the high degree of complexity 
surrounds the revenue recognition, we assessed the 
Company’s processes and controls for revenue 
recognition as part of our audit. Furthermore, in order to 
mitigate the inherent risk in this audit area, our audit 
approach included in the testing of the controls and 
substantive audit procedure, including: 

  We evaluated the Company’s accounting policies 
pertaining to revenue recognition and assessed 
compliance with the politics in terms of IFRS 15 – 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

 

 We identified and tested the controls relating to a 
sample of contracts and assessing their maturity 
year to confirm the timely recognition of the 
revenue over the length of the contracts. 

Other Information:

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. We have not been provided the Directors report and other information contained within the 
annual report except the financial statements to the date of our auditor's report. We expect to obtain the remaining 
reports of the Annual report after the date of our auditor's report. Management is responsible for the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and 
Internal Controls:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 
1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

We conducted substantive testing of revenue 
recorded over the year using sampling techniques 
by examining the relevant supporting documents 
including instruments for each of the different 
revenue accounts.   
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

*     Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*    Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.

*    Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

*      Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*     Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and 
Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also 
report that:

a)  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

c)  The Company management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules in managing the affairs of the 
Company and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books have been properly maintained and 
(where applicable) proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from branches not 
visited by us;

d)  As per section 63(2) of the Insurance Act 2010, in our opinion to the best of our knowledge and belief an according 
to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of management wherever incurred and whether 
incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh during 
the year under report have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts and the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income of the Company;

e)  We report that to the best of our information and as shown by its books, the company during the year under report 
has not paid any person any commission in any form, outside Bangladesh in respect of any its business re-insured 
abroad;

f)  The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, 
related Revenue Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company together 
with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

g)  The expenditure was incurred for the purpose of the company’s business.

      

 

Place: Dhaka.
Dated: April 21, 2022

Md. Iqbal Hossain FCA
Senior Partner

Enrolment No. 596 (ICAB)

Zoha Zaman Kabir Rashid & Co.
Chartered Accountant

DVC: 2205120596AS542900




























































































